
Questions and Answers – Updated 1/23/14 
RFP for Purchase and Development of Block 1 Liner Parcel and Air Rights Plane 
 

1. Who was on the Pre-Proposal Conference Call on January 13, 2014? 
 
Attendees on the Pre-Proposal Conference Call were: 
Ackerberg Group – Joan Bennett 
Selwyn Property Group – Kurt Schoenhoff 
Pauls Corporation – Paul Pauls, Bill Pauls, Brian Pauls, Mike Serra, Chris Manley, Adam Hudson 
and Joe Wilson 
Humpreys & Partners Urban Architecture – Scott Leever 
Sherman Associates – Tony Kuechle 
Ryan Companies – Rick Collins, Mike Ryan and Collin Barr 
Policy Aide for C.M. Lisa Bender – Ben Somogyi 
KSTP-TV – Joe Mason 
Hoyt Properties – Marc Nanne 
Brunsfield International – Bill Madden 
Commers Property Development, Inc. – Andrew Commers 
Pierce Pini & Associates, Inc. – Tim Settala 
Consultant – Peter Brodd 
Summit Hotel Properties – Craig Aniszewski 
Julie Snow Architects, Inc. – Alita Bergan 
Consultants for CPED – Peter Brown and Jim Nelson 
CPED Staff – Chuck Lutz, Miles Mercer, Beth Elliott, Hilary Dvorak and Bob Lind 
 

2. Do proposals have to include both the Liner Parcel and the Air Rights Plane? 
 

It is the City’s expectation that the proposals would include both the Liner Parcel and the Air Rights 
Plane, but it is not necessary. 

 
3. Ryan Companies will design and build the parking ramp. How will the design process for the 

ramp be coordinated with that of the Liner Parcel and Air Rights Plane, in terms of schedule, 
cost, and control? 
 
It is the City’s expectation that the developer from this RFP process will be designated by the 
Minneapolis City Council in March 2014.  At that time it is assumed the developer will be 
coordinating with the Ryan Companies on the parking ramp design.  Items of concern include: 
I. SCHEDULE – MSFA Parking Ramp Project Design should start immediately upon award of 

the development rights in March 2014 so to avoid delay in commencement of parking ramp 
revenues.  Design process that starts later than March 2014 and/or Construction 
Commencement that starts later than October 2014 will cause a month for month delay in 
Ryan’s January 1, 2016 MSFA parking ramp turn-over/operation commencement and ability 
to start generating revenue.  To the extent that the selected developer(s) design process 
delays these ramp revenues, the selected developer(s) will be responsible for those costs 
whether or not a closing actually occurs. 

II. CONTROL – Ryan has contractual commitments to the MSFA and City as it relates to 
delivering the ramp and the design of the ramp.  To the extent the ramp is altered by the 
added development, Ryan will control this process.  Ryan will not control any other aspects of 
the design of the additive development. 

III. COST – As the developer works toward a design solution and ultimate closing with the City, 
Ryan and its design team will work with the developer to design a solution for both the ramp 
and the additive development.  The developer will be responsible for covering the costs of 
Ryan’s design time and the time of its consultants.  In addition, any increases in the 



construction cost of the ramp attributable to the added development will be the responsibility 
of the developer.  Such costs include but are not limited to: 
a. Revisited entitlement and approvals issues with City of Minneapolis, AUAR, PUD, PDR, 

Traffic Analysis, Stormwater, etc., that need to be secured to accommodate the added 
development. 

b. Increased sizing and loading capacity of MSFA Parking Ramp foundation and structural 
systems (along with load transfer coordination for overhead expansion facility). 

c. Cost and coordination of adequate site utility services for expanded development 
(electrical service and generator(s), storm water capacity provisions, sanitary sewer sizing 
and access, natural gas, domestic and fire protection water, etc.). 

d. Coordination of required loading dock provisions (at grade level) and vertical shaft 
provisions (elevators, mechanical ductwork and exit stairs) within the MSFA parking ramp. 

e. General coordination of parking ramp revisions and usage with Vikings/MSFA during NFL 
and other applicable events to ensure that overhead or adjacent facility expansion that 
does not adversely affect NFL ramp exiting requirements or expectations. 

f. Building code and zoning reviews. 
g. Coordinated interface with new skyway system and adjacent Metro Transit/Light Rail 

issues. 
h. Extension/remobilization of general conditions (tower cranes, temporary power and lights, 

perimeter site safety fence and pedestrian barriers, street closure provisions, etc.). 
i. Coordination issues after December 2015 ramp turn-over need to be evaluated 

(pedestrian/general safety provisions, coordination with ramp user traffic, construction 
staging, logistics and hoisting, etc.). 

j. Public safety liability after December 2015 ramp turn-over, particularly for overhead 
construction during parking ramp operation. 

k. Areas of the parking ramp (such as the top level) that would be unusable for public parking 
during construction of added development. 

l. Replacement of any parking spaces lost due to development by others, to maintain a 
minimum of 1,610 spaces for MSFA ownership. 

 
4. If the opening of the ramp is delayed for some reason due to the development of the Liner 

Parcel and Air Rights Plane, how are the Ryan Companies financial obligations related to the 
ramp to be handled? 
 
This point is under negotiation with Ryan as part of the broader finalization and documentation of the 
Downtown East deal. 
 

5. If the Air Rights Plane development requires vertical penetrations or other accommodations 
in the ramp that displace parking spaces, how will those lost parking spaces be replaced? 

 
Development on the Air Rights Plane should maximize the use of the Liner Parcel for any needed 
vertical penetrations, thereby minimizing the impact on the parking ramp itself.  If modifications in the 
ramp for vertical penetration or other accommodations result in a loss of parking spaces, the 
developer must replace spaces (e.g. by building another level of parking) so that there are at least 
1,610 total in the ramp.  Replacement of these stalls should occur above the top of the existing 
ramp. 
 

6. What are the height restrictions and the height goals for the Air Rights Plane and the Liner 
Parcel development? 
 
The permitted height in the B4N Downtown Neighborhood zoning district is 10 stories with 
opportunities to build taller with a conditional use permit.  This is an area of the city where policy 
calls for intense development that is transit-oriented.  The City would support additional height if a 



proposal meets the goals set forth in the RFP.  The parking ramp is considered in the site’s allowed 
height. 
 

7. Do the current revenue projections for the ramp assume that some number of parking spaces 
would be lost to accommodate the Air Rights Plane development? 
 
No.  The revenue projections for the ramp have not taken into account any lost parking spaces due 
to accommodations for the Air Rights Plane development.  The ramp must contain at least 1,610 
spaces. 
 

8. What is the timing constraint on starting construction on the Liner Parcel? 
 
The Ryan Companies plans to complete the parking ramp by the end of 2015.  The Property (Liner 
Parcel and Air Rights Plane) will be available for construction by approximately the 4th quarter of 
2015, once the construction of the parking ramp is substantially complete. 
 

9. When can the public expect to see construction start on the block? 
 
The public can expect to see the start of construction on the parking ramp in the 4th quarter of 2014. 
 

10. How does the City avoid the same development/leasing problems that occurring in Block E? 
 
These are two different projects that share no relationship. 

 
11. The City approval process timing implies that there will be a funding requirement for design 

changes to accommodate the Air Rights Plane development, how will this fit into the 
proposed timing for the land sale and closing in summer 2014? 

 
The City will seek to accommodate whatever timing requirement the selected developer has for 
closing but anticipates that some level of closing will be necessary before Ryan Companies begins 
construction on the ramp itself expected in Fall 2014.  However, as the design process must 
commence immediately so as to avoid delaying revenues from the ramp, payment to the City for 
Ryan’s design time will commence immediately upon award of the project in March 2014. 
 

12. If the design of the ramp advances to accommodate the Air Rights Plane and Liner Parcel 
development and then the development does not close, who and how will the design changes 
be paid for to bring the ramp back to its original design with no accommodations for Air 
Rights Plane development? 
 
The selected developer will be responsible for the cost of the design or redesign of the parking ramp. 
 

13. Is there provision in the current parking ramp design to provide vertical circulation of 
elevators and stairwells to serve the Air Rights Plane development? 
 
No, the current design of the ramp does not provide for vertical circulation for the Air Rights Plane.  
Refer back to Question #5. 
 

14. Will the preliminary design/development plans from Ryan Companies for the parking ramp be 
made available to others? 
 
Any plans that Ryan has submitted as part of its PUD process submittals are available to 
developers, though the ramp is subject to ongoing design revisions.  The most frequent design will 
be made available to responders by January 27, 2014. 
 



15. Are there any traffic studies available on what happens if Air Rights Plane is developed? 
 
A traffic analysis was done in conjunction with the AUAR (Alternative Urban Areawide Review) for 
the project.  The traffic analysis examined the minimum and maximum development scenarios: 
Minimum Development Scenario:  up to 1,400,000 square feet of office; 410 residential units (or 
350 residential units and a 150 room/110,000 square foot hotel); 80,000 square feet of retail; and 
1,925 parking spaces; all concentrated on the three blocks along South 3rd Street.  The two blocks 
along South 5th Street are proposed for public plaza/park use. 
Maximum Development Scenario:  up to 2,580,000 square feet of office; 335 residential units (or 
275 residential units and a 150 room/110,000 square foot hotel); 105,000 square feet of retail; and 
2,675 parking spaces; all concentrated on the three blocks along South 3rd Street and extending 
along 5th Avenue South for approximately 1/3 of the block ending at South 5th Street.  The majority of 
the blocks along South 5th Street is proposed for public plaza/park use. 
 
If the Liner Parcel/Air Rights Plane development, in addition to the Ryan Companies’ mixed use 
development that has been approved to date, were to exceed the maximum development scenario, 
then additional traffic analysis may be needed. 
 
Also, depending on Ryan Companies next phase of housing on the north portions of the office blocks 
and whatever is proposed for the Liner Parcel/Air Rights Plane development, the overall 
development may exceed the maximum development envisioned.  If this is the case an additional 
environmental review process may also be needed. 
 

16. Any idea of what the market value is for the Liner Parcel and Air Rights Plane? 
 
It is the City’s expectation that the proposals submitted would include a price offered for the 
purchase of the Property. 
 

17. Are there any environmental reports or geo-technical reports available related to the 
property? 
 
Environmental reports are available upon request.  No geotechnical information is available at this 
time. 
 

18. The RFP asks for proposals to include line items in their development budgets related to the 
costs to the ramp to accommodate the Air Rights Plane and Liner Parcel development.  How 
will the City validate and track those costs? 
 
The City anticipates using a third-party consultant to validate and track the costs in consultation with 
Ryan Companies. 
 

19. How high is Ryan Companies’ Wells Fargo development? 
 
The overall height of the office buildings are 23 stories or 300 feet six inches. 
 

20. Are there any parking ramp rooftop antennae requirements? 
 
Antenna installations require a zoning review.  The zoning application is an Administrative Review of 
Telecommunications Towers, Antennas and Base Units. 
 
The Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority’s consultant has described the roof top antennae 
requirements as: We’ll have one antenna that is the size and shape of an upside down “large plastic 
Slurpee soda glass”, one that is the size and shape of a 10 inch globe, two that are the size and 
shape of cross country 24 inch relay sticks, three or four that are like the small 12-15 inch “Direct TV” 



type antennas you see attached to residential rooftops, and one that is the size and shape of a 
medium 9x12 inch kitchen chopping block. 
 
The additional requirements for electrical and conduit up to the parking ramp roof are:  One three 
inch conduit with sweeping 45 degree bends from Skyway terminus at Parking Ramp structure to 
rooftop of overall development; including any additional floors resulting from sale of Air Rights Plane.  
The conduit must have one twenty-four inch square pull box each 100 feet accessible by 
technicians.  No section of conduit shall contain more than two 45-degree bends between pull boxes.  
Four four-gang 120 volt electrical outlets are to be installed at rooftop conduit termination point.  This 
connection point should be housed within a four foot by six foot locked wiring closet dedicated to this 
purpose.  Twelve ¾ inch weatherproofed conduits must extend from top floor wiring closet to rooftop 
antenna locations. 

 
21. The RFP requests that proposals submitted do not exceed twenty (20) facing pages of 

information.  Exhibits not counted towards the 20 pages include preliminary schematics, 
plans, and/or elevations.  However, the development budget and operating pro forma can 
often run many pages, can these also be considered exhibits and not counted towards the 20 
pages? 
 
Yes, consider the development budget and operating pro forma as exhibits to the proposal and not 
part of the 20 page limitation. 
 
 
 
 
 


